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12 May, 2022
Dear Daniel,

REZONING OF PORTION OF LOTS 418 & 419 DP 1252087, COLDEN DRIVE, ALBION PARK
ACOUSTICAL ADVICE

APR Domain Pty Ltd is seeking approval from Shellharbour City Council for the rezoning of a

narrow portion of lots 418 and 419 in DP 1252087, Colden Drive, Albion Park, NSW from RE1
zone to IN2 zone.

Lots 418 and 419 in DP 1252087 are located on the western side of Colden Drive and Sandon

Circuit and the southern side of the Prince Highway, Albion Park, in a light industrial area, as
shown in Figure 1 below.
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Figure 1. Location Plan and Zoning Map Lots 418 and 419 in DP 1252087
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Currently the sites are split zoned IN2 Light Industry, with a narrow strip of RE1 Public
Recreation zoned land located along the western boundary, as shown in Figure 1.
Shellharbour City Council has requested advice in relation to the potential for noise impact
that may arise from the future use of the strip of land if it were to be rezoned to IN2 light
industrial.

| am pleased to offer the following comments.

Harwood Acoustics (now harwood Acosutics Pty Ltd) previously prepared an Environmental
Noise Impact Assessment for a bulky goods development to be constructed on Lot 419 DP
1252807, reference 2004007E-R, dated June 2020 (the NIA).

The NIA, among other things, established noise design goals in accordance with the NSW EPA’s
Noise Policy for Industry 2017 at the closest residential receptors to the Site. These are taken
from the NIA and are shown in Figure 2 below.

R1-104 Jarrah Way — (Circa 20 metres) R2 —90 Jarrah Way — (circa 20 metres)
— . g Y

Figure 2. Location Plan of Lot 419 in DP 1252087 Showing Nearest Residences from the NIA
The noise goals established in the NIA are as follows:-
e (47 +5 =) 52 dBA Leg, 15 minute during the day time period,
e (44 +5 =) 49 dBA Leg, 15 minute during the evening period,
e (45+5 =) 50 dBA Leg, 15 minute during the shoulder periods between 6 am and 7 am and
6 pmand 7 pm,
e (45 + 15 =) 60 dBA L1, 1 minute between 6 am and 7 am as an external screening test for
sleep disturbance,

e 45-55dBA L1, 1 minute between 6 am and 7 am as a further internal test for the potential
for sleep disturbance.
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The NIA demonstrated that the noise design goals would be met for the bulky goods
development on Lot 419 with typical noise controls. Approval was granted for the Lot 419 and
the development is currently under construction which includes the sound barrier wall in
accordance with the requirements of the consent. Rezoning of the portion of land on Lot 419
will have a negligible effect on noise emission from the Site as this has already been accounted
for at the DA stage for the proposed use.

Any future development on the rezoned parcel of land on Lot 418 would be required to comply
with the EPA’s noise goals and an assessment of the noise impacts would be undertaken at
the time of future development applications.

In my view, any future commercial or light industrial development on Lot 418 could be readily
designed and controlled to meet the relevant noise goals at all receptors with suitable noise
controls that would not be particularly onerous.

It is worth noting that the background noise levels at the residential receptors closer to the
Princes Highway and to Lot 418 are likely to be higher still than those in Jarah Way. This could
result in EPA noise criteria for any future development on Lot 418 that is slightly less stringent
than for Lot 419, meaning that noise emission from any future development on Lot 418 could
potentially be permitted to be higher than that which arises from Lot 419.

In any event, there is no reason acoustically that the portions of land on Lots 418 and
419 currently zoned RE1 could not be rezoned to IN2 light industrial and individual
assessments of any future application for Lot 418 would be undertaken at the time.

Please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned should you require any additional
information or clarification.

Yours faithfully

B,

Matthew Harwood, maas
Director & Principal Consultant
Harwood Acoustics Pty Ltd
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Important Note

Advice in this Report is intended as for the architect for input in preparing final construction drawings
and is not intended as use as construction details for the builder.

All products and materials suggested by Harwood Acoustics Pty Ltd are selected for their acoustical
properties only. Recommendations made in this report are intended to resolve acoustical problems
only, therefore all other properties such as aesthetics, air flows, chemical, corrosion, combustion,
construction details, decomposition, expansion, fire rating, fumes, grout or tile cracking, loading,
shrinkage, smoke, ventilation etc. are outside Harwood Acoustic’s field of expertise and must be
checked with the supplier or suitably qualified specialist before purchase.

Disclaimer

While every reasonable effort has been made to ensure that this document is correct at the time of
printing, Harwood Acoustics Pty Ltd, their Associates, Subcontractors and employees make no
representation, undertake no duty and accept no responsibility to any third party who use or rely upon
this document or the information contained in it. No guarantees are either expressed or implied.

This report has been prepared solely for use by the Client identified on the title page as per our
agreement for providing noise assessment services and is entitled to rely upon the findings in the report
within the scope of work described in this report.

Although all due care has been taken in the preparation of this report, no warranty is given, nor liability
accepted (except that required by law) in relation to the information contained within this document.

This report and information therein cannot be relied on or used by any third party. Any representation,
statement, opinion or advice, expressed or implied in this report is made in good faith but on the basis
that Harwood Acoustics Pty Ltd are not liable (whether by reason of negligence, lack of care or
otherwise) to any person for any damage or loss whatsoever which has occurred or may occur in
relation to that person taking or not taking (as the case may be) action in any respect of any
representation, statement, or advice referred to above.

No responsibility is accepted for the use of any part of the report in any other context or for any other
purpose.

Opinions and judgements expressed herein, which are based on our understanding and interpretation
of current regulatory standards, should not be construed as legal opinions.

Harwood Acoustics Pty Ltd reserves all copyright of intellectual property in any or all of Harwood
Acoustics Pty Ltd documents. No permission, license or authority is granted by Harwood Acoustics Pty
Ltd to any person or organisation to use any of Harwood Acoustics Pty Ltd documents for any purpose
without the written consent of Harwood Acoustics Pty Ltd
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